

# South Central Tennessee Development District (SCTDD)

# Request for Proposal (RFP) for SCTDD EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant Project

Released for Bid: December 3, 2024 Submissions Due Date: January 10, 2025 2:30 pm CST Projects must be fulfilled and completed no later than: June 30, 2028

## Contents

PURPOSE OF THIS SOLICITATION FOR PROPOSALS	2
Objectives:	2
Scope of Services	3
Task Activities	5
Project Funding	5
Project Timeline	<i>6</i>
Labeling of Response Package	<i>6</i>
Evaluation and Bid Awards	<i>6</i>
Evaluation Criteria Scoring Max Points	7
Debarment and Suspension Status	7
Award of Contract	7
Conflict of Interest	7
Proposal Requirements	8
Basic Requirements & Conditions	8
Dispute / Protest / Appeal Process	10
Proposal Postponement and Amendments	11
Legal Requirements	11
Indemnification and Hold Harmless	12
Attachment A	13
Proposing Entity Form	13
Attachment B	14
Conflict of Interest Form	14
Attachment C	15
EPA Solicitation Clauses	15

### PURPOSE OF THIS SOLICITATION FOR PROPOSALS

The South Central Tennessee Development District (SCTDD) is soliciting proposals from qualified environmental firms to support its recently awarded U.S. EPA Grant for Brownfields. The purpose is to conduct Phase I and Phase II environmental site assessments (ESAs) across the SCTDD's 13-county service area, which includes Bedford, Coffee, Franklin, Giles, Hickman, Lawrence, Lewis, Lincoln, Marshall, Maury, Moore, Perry, and Wayne Counties.

### **Objectives:**

- 1. **Project Management**: Oversee the implementation of the environmental projects and assessments.
- 2. **Environmental Inventory and Assessment**: Conduct Phase I and Phase II ESAs in accordance with current ASTM standards on identified Brownfield sites.
- 3. **Public Information and Outreach**: Engage with the community and stakeholders to raise awareness and inform about the grant activities.

### **Future Potential:**

As funding becomes available, SCTDD may expand its objectives to include the cleanup of specific sites identified through the assessments.

### **Desired Qualifications:**

- Experience in addressing contaminated properties.
- Proven track record in environmental assessments and project management.
- Ability to engage and inform the community effectively.
- Capacity to explore additional grants and initiatives related to brownfields.

### **Submission Details:**

Interested firms should submit their proposals, including relevant experience, qualifications, and a proposed approach to meet the objectives outlined above. The SCTDD will evaluate submissions based on experience, expertise, and proposed methodologies.

For more information on submission guidelines and deadlines, please refer to the official solicitation announcement or contact SCTDD directly.

This opportunity allows firms to contribute to important environmental assessments that can positively impact local communities and support future redevelopment initiatives.

Offeror is not bound to the specifications within this RFP, they are intended as guidance and open to recommendations and/or improvements to the specifications that offer the best value.

## **Scope of Services**

SCTDD is utilizing funding from the FY24 EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant to assess eligible sites across a 13-county service area, including Bedford, Coffee, Franklin, Giles, Hickman, Lawrence, Lewis, Lincoln, Marshall, Maury, Moore, Perry, and Wayne counties. The following priority sites do not represent an exhaustive list of the potential properties covered under the scope of service for this RFP as opportunities and funding to redevelop other brownfield sites may later present themselves.

### **Target/Priority Areas**

- 1. Shelbyville Target Area (STA)
  - o National Pen- Address: 342 Shelbyville Mills Rd., Shelbyville, TN 37160
  - o Mars Dogfood Plant- Address: E Depot St, Shelbyville, TN 37160

Focus: Two large brownfield sites:

- o Former pen & pencil manufacturer
- Former dog food manufacturing plant

**Context**: Adjoins low-income, high-poverty neighborhoods.

- 2. Lincoln County Target Area (LCTA)
  - o Elk Yarn Mill- Address: Hwy 231 N, Fayetteville, TN 37334
  - o **R & B Wire & Steel- Address**: 4071 Thornton Taylor Pkwy, Fayetteville, TN 37334 **Focus**: Two large brownfield sites:
    - o Former wire & steel manufacturer
    - o Former yarn mill

**Context**: Adjacent to low-income neighborhoods.

3. Lincoln County Hospital- Address: 700 Maple St, Fayetteville, TN 37334

Focus: Initial focus on:

o Former Lincoln County Hospital

**Context**: Contains several closed institutional brownfield properties in a low-income neighborhood.

The primary objective is to assess these brownfield properties to identify potential risks, opportunities for redevelopment, and strategies for community revitalization, especially in neighborhoods facing economic challenges.

Brownfield sites—previously developed land that may be contaminated—offer both challenges and significant opportunities for community revitalization. In the STA, LCTA, and SCTA regions, there are over 60 brownfield sites, varying in size from under an acre to more than 100 acres. These sites are often strategically located, making them ideal candidates for redevelopment.

This report identifies priority sites, as detailed in Table 1, selected for their potential to drive economic growth, enhance environmental quality, and meet community needs. Key considerations for prioritization include but are not limited to:

Table 1		
Priority Site, Size, Proximity to	Historic Use / Current Use &	Suspected Contaminants*
Target Area Residents	Condition / Planned Reuse	
Elk Yarn Mill, Hwy 231 N, Fayetteville (in LCTA) – 15.4 acres; adjoins low- income neighborhood; adjoins creek	Former cotton mill / Vacant buildings / light industrial or warehousing	PCBs, metals, petroleum, VOCs, PAHs, asbestos, lead paint
R & B Wire & Steel, 4071 Thornton Taylor Pkwy, Fayetteville (in LCTA) – 4.7 acres in commercial area; adjoins residential properties	Former wire manufacturer / Vacant buildings / Multi-tenant commercial redevelopment	PCBs, metals, petroleum, VOCs, PAHs, asbestos, lead paint
Lincoln County Hospital, 700 Maple St, Fayetteville (in SCTA) – 6 acres in low- income neighborhood; adjoins daycare center	Former hospital / Vacant buildings / Mixed-use redevelopment	PCBs, metals, petroleum, VOCs, PAHs, asbestos, lead paint
National Pen, 342 Shelbyville Mills Rd (in STA) - 108 acres, adjoins low-income neighborhood; adjoins Duck River	Pencil & ink pen manufacturer / Vacant buildings / New industrial redevelopment or greenspace	PCBs, metals, petroleum, VOCs, PAHs, asbestos, lead paint
Mars Dogfood Plant, E Depot St (in STA) – 24 acres in old industrial/commercial area; adjoins low-income neighborhood	Former dogfood manufacturer / Vacant-underutilized / Mixed-use redevelopment	PCBs, metals, petroleum, VOCs, PAHs, asbestos, lead paint

By targeting these priority sites, we seek to foster redevelopment efforts that transform neglected areas into thriving community assets, ultimately contributing to the economic and social well-being of the region.

### **Task Activities**

### 1: Program Management, Training Support, Brownfield Inventory/Prioritization

• **Objective**: Establish a comprehensive management framework for the brownfield program.

#### • Activities:

- Develop project timelines and deliverables.
- Provide training sessions for stakeholders on brownfield assessment and redevelopment processes.
- o Conduct a thorough inventory of brownfield sites in the target areas.
- o Prioritize sites based on criteria such as environmental risk, potential for redevelopment, and community needs.

### 2: Environmental Investigation

- **Objective**: Assess the environmental conditions of prioritized brownfield sites.
- Activities:
  - Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (ESAs) to identify potential contaminants.
  - o Implement Phase II ESAs, including sampling and laboratory analysis, to confirm the presence and extent of contamination.
  - Collaborate with environmental professionals to interpret findings and develop remediation strategies.

### 3: Clean-up and Reuse Planning

- Objective: Develop plans for the cleanup and future use of brownfield sites.
- Activities:
  - o Identify appropriate cleanup methods based on environmental assessments.
  - o Engage with local authorities to ensure compliance with regulations.
  - Create reuse plans that align with community goals, such as parks, housing, or commercial spaces.

### 4: Community Outreach & Involvement

- **Objective**: Foster community engagement and awareness regarding brownfield redevelopment.
- Activities:
  - o Organize community meetings to share information and gather input on redevelopment plans.
  - Develop educational materials to inform residents about brownfield issues and project updates.
  - o Create partnerships with local organizations to enhance outreach efforts.
  - o Implement feedback mechanisms to ensure community voices are heard in the planning process.

## **Project Funding**

This project is funded under a grant provided by U.S Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The amount available under this RFP is \$1,429,125.

## **Project Timeline**

RFP Release (Timeline)	December 3, 2024
Bidders Questions submitted via email (questions sent no later than December 17, 2024) epa@sctdd.org	From: December 3, 2024 To: December 17, 2024
Responses to Questions submitted	Responses by December 23, 2024
Proposal Deadline	January 10, 2025
Proposal should be emailed to <a href="mailto:epa@sctdd.org">epa@sctdd.org</a> with Subject: RFP for EPA Grant Project or mailed to: SCTDD, 101 Sam Watkins Blvd, Mt Pleasant, TN 38474 with Subject: RFP for EPA Grant Project. It is the responsibility of the proposing agency to ensure that the proposal is received prior to the deadline of January 10, 2025 no later than 2:30 pm Late submissions will NOT be accepted.	
Selection Committee Recommendation	Target date: January 17, 2025
Notification to All Bidders of the Intent to Award	Target date: January 24, 2025
Contract Start Date	Target date: February 10, 2025

## **Labeling of Response Package**

Responses will be accepted by online electronic submission or carrier. Online submission email is <a href="mailto:epa@sctdd.org">epa@sctdd.org</a> with Subject: RFP for **EPA Grant Project**. Mailed submissions should be mailed to SCTDD ATTN: RFP for **EPA Grant Project**, 101 Sam Watkins Blvd, Mt Pleasant, TN 38474

Mailed submissions and electronic submissions shall be opened January 10, 2025 at 2:30 p.m. Central Standard Time

## **Evaluation and Bid Awards**

Bids will be evaluated by SCTDD staff in compliance with stated requirements. Contracts will be awarded to the "Responsive responsible bidder(s) providing best value" for each base line item offered.

### **Evaluation Criteria Scoring Max Points**

- a) Capability and Experience 40%
- b) Price Evaluation 25%
- c) Provide examples of past projects where you successfully met deadlines and stayed within budget. Include details such as project scope, budget, timeline, and the specific roles your firm played (Include References) 25%
- d) Experience in addressing contaminated properties 10%

### **Debarment and Suspension Status**

- a. Offeror is not currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any government agency, nor is Offeror an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any government agency.
- b. Offeror has not within a three-year period preceding this RFP been convicted of or had a civil suit judgment rendered against Offeror for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making a false statement or receiving stolen property.
- c. Offeror is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above.
- d. Offeror has not, within a three-year period preceding this RFP, had any government (federal, state, or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.
- e. Offeror will be required to provide:
  - Result of a SAM.gov search that shows the contractor has no exclusions, or
  - Submitting a certification letter stating no exclusions

### **Award of Contract**

SCTDD will issue a contract based on the RFP process to ensure all parties are in agreement. In the event of sole source or receipt of only one proposal, Grantee may require a cost analysis. If a cost analysis is necessary, the contractor awarded will be required to assist SCTDD with the cost analysis.

### **Conflict of Interest**

No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or subcontractor, no member of the governing body of the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or responsibilities in the review or Contractor approval of this Agreement, shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. An interested party shall not receive, directly or indirectly, any financial or personal benefits in connection with this RFP. An

Interested Party also shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit any gift, gratuity, favor, entertainment or any other benefit having a monetary value for himself or herself or for another person or entity, from any person or organization that obtained or seeks award.

### **Proposal Requirements**

Interested parties should submit a proposal with section titles that includes:

- 1. Cover Letter
- 2. Proposing Entity Form (Attachment A)
- 3. Conflict of Interest Form (Attachment B)
- 4. Organizational Chart
- 5. Proof of Insurance (Certificate of Insurance Liability and Workers Comp)
- 6. Copy of most recent audit and/or copy of two years financial history and relative evidence fiscal responsibility.
- 7. Narrative Body
  - a) Capability & Experience (Qualification)
  - b) Budget Narrative, Schedule, and Cost (Detailed Narrative with all costs associated with the project)
  - c) Example of Past Projects / Three (3) Letters of Reference
  - d) Experience in addressing contaminated properties

The proposal should be single-sided, numbered pages, one-inch margins, double spaced and 12-point font. The narrative body should be no more than 10 pages.

### **Basic Requirements & Conditions**

- The final requirements and specifications contained herein may be different, perhaps materially, from those in the RFP. It is the Offeror's sole responsibility to thoroughly examine and review all documentation associated with this RFP, including any Addendums, and to ensure that any response submitted complies in every respect with all requirements.
- Offeror is not bound to the specifications within this RFP, they are intended as guidance and open to recommendations and/or improvements to the specifications that offer the best value.
- Any Addendum to this RFP which may be required prior to the response due date will be delivered to those prospective Offerors of record who have previously obtained a copy of this RFP from SCTDD. Prospective Offerors shall be responsible for obtaining all documents relating to submission of a response.
- Offeror shall thoroughly examine any drawings, specifications, schedules, instructions and any other documents, supplied as a part of this RFP, and is solely responsible for understanding and compliance.
- SCTDD shall not be liable for Offeror's incomplete documentation, or for any costs associated with preparation and submission of any response hereto. Additionally, all components of any response become the property of SCTDD, and shall be considered to be in the public domain.

- Offeror shall make all investigations necessary to become thoroughly informed regarding any plan and/or infrastructure that may be required to support delivery of any Product or Service covered by this RFP.
- No plea of ignorance by Offeror stemming from failure to investigate conditions that may now or hereafter exist, shall be accepted as a basis for varying SCTDD's requirements, or Offeror's/Contractor's obligations or entitlements.
- Requests for changes to the requirements or specifications herein must be in writing (email, fax, letter) and must be received by SCTDD no later than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the response Due Date. SCTDD will review such requests, but may or may not make changes at its sole discretion. Changes, if any, will only be made by written Addendum sent to addressees of record. In any event, it is Offeror's sole responsibility to ensure that any and all Addendums which may have been issued have been received and addressed.
- By submission of a response, Offeror expressly understands and agrees that all terms and conditions herein will be part of any subsequent contract that is executed pursuant to this RFP.
- Offeror is advised that all SCTDD contracts are subject to the legal requirements established in any applicable Local, State or Federal statute.
- Offeror/Contractor must be in compliance with all licensing, permitting, registration and
  other applicable legal or regulatory requirements imposed by any governmental authority
  having jurisdiction. It is Offeror/Contractor's responsibility to ensure that this requirement
  is met, and to supply to SCTDD upon request, copies of any license, permit or other
  documentation bearing on such compliance.
- Unless otherwise established elsewhere in this RFP, NO minimum purchase quantities or spending levels are provided or guaranteed by SCTDD or any End User.
- This RFP is not meant to restrict competition, but rather is intended to allow for a wide range of responses.
- Responses which are 'qualified' with conditional clauses or alterations of or exceptions to any of the terms and conditions in this RFP may be deemed non-compliant at SCTDD's sole discretion.
- The term 'Offeror', or derivative thereof, shall become synonymous with 'Contractor' for any successful Offeror recommended for a contract pursuant to this RFP.
- SCTDD reserves the right to:
  - Reject any and all offers received in response to this RFP.
  - Reject any part of an offer received in response to this RFP.
  - Determine the correct price and/or terminology in the event of any discrepancies in any response.
  - Accept a response from, and enter into agreement with, other than the lowest price Offeror.
  - Accept responses and award contracts to as many or as few Offerors as SCTDD may select.
  - Amend, waive, modify, or withdraw (in part or in whole) this RFP, or any requirements herein.
  - Hold discussions with Offerors, although award may be made without discussion.
  - Request an Offeror to give a presentation of the response at a time and place scheduled by SCTDD.

- Exercise any of these rights at any time without liability to any Offeror.
- SCTDD reserves the right to determine that conditions exist which prevent the public opening of responses on the date and at the time advertised, and to reschedule the public opening for a future date and time. Responses received by SCTDD by the original deadline will be secured unopened until the rescheduled opening date and time, and those having timely submitted such responses will be notified.

## **Dispute / Protest / Appeal Process**

Any protest or objection to the Conditions and Specifications will be submitted for resolution to SCTDD. Each protest must be made in writing and supported by sufficient information to enable a protest to be considered. A protest or objection will not be considered by SCTDD if it is insufficiently supported or if it is not received within five (5) calendar days after the announcement of RFP recipient.

Protest may be made by prospective proposers whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of a bid or by failure to award a bid. The South Central Tennessee Development District will consider all protests requested in a timely manner regarding the award of a contract, whether submitted before or after the award. All protests are to be submitted in writing to Misti Baker, Special Project Coordinator South Central Tennessee Development District, 101 Sam Watkins Blvd., TN 38474. Protest submissions should be concise, logically arranged, and clearly state the grounds for the protest. The protest submission must include at least the following information:

- 1. Name, address, and telephone number of the protester.
- 2. Identification of the solicitation or contract number
- 3. A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds for the protest.
- 4. A statement as to what relief is requested

Protest must be submitted to the South Central Tennessee Development District in accordance with these procedures and in a timely manner. Protest must be complete and contain all issues that the protestor believes relevant. The decision of the South Central Tennessee Development District will be final and conclusive. Notice of the protest and the basis therefore will be given to all prospective Bidders or Proposers.

Any further appeal process arising from this proposal or subsequent contract shall be resolved through arbitration. Any litigation shall be handled under the jurisdiction of Maury County, Tennessee District Court. Any disputes, protests, or appeals to the RFP procedure process will be handled in accordance with the, Third Party Contracting Guidance procedures. Responses, Questions, Disputes, or other RFP Interaction may be done in writing (email is acceptable) by contacting:

ATTN: RFP SCTDD EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant Project South Central TN Development District 101 Sam Watkins Blvd Mount Pleasant, TN 38474 (phone) 1-931-379-2915, (email) epa@sctdd.org

### **Proposal Postponement and Amendments**

SCTDD reserves the right to postpone the proposal due date for their own convenience and to waive any minor informalities in proposals submitted. SCTDD may cancel the RFP completely or in part and re-advertise if adequate response is not received. If the RFP is re-advertised, prior RFP's shall remain closed to inspection until the evaluation of the re-advertisement is complete.

SCTDD reserves the right to revise, amend, or modify the specifications at any time up to the time set for receipt of the proposals. If it is appropriate to revise any portion of this RFP, either at the request of a Responder or upon SCTDD initiative, a written addendum will be issued setting forth the revision. Addenda will be forwarded to all Responders who received or requested the RFP and have submitted the Notice to Responders Form before the specified due date. Responders shall acknowledge receipt of addenda by completing the Acknowledgement of Addenda Form and returning with proposal. Failure to acknowledge receipt of all addenda may cause the proposal to be considered non-responsive. If the revisions and amendments are likely to require the revision of proposal prices the proposal opening date may be postponed by the number of days SCTDD feels necessary for Responder to revise their proposal. The response opening shall be at least five (5) working days after the last amendment, and the amendments shall include an announcement of the new date. All amendment(s) shall be acknowledged on the form found in the RFP. Should a Proposer find a discrepancy or omissions from these specifications, or be in doubt as to their meaning, they shall at once make inquiry in writing to SCTDD.

### **Legal Requirements**

Responders must obtain and/or verify compliance with all state, local, and federal regulations and requirements, including the Federal ADA, Non-Discrimination, and other federally mandated regulations.

### a. Disadvantages Business Enterprise (DBE)

Please identify any participation in the project by disadvantaged business enterprises. DBE's shall be given maximum opportunity to participate in contracting opportunities arising from this solicitation. Documentation demonstrating outreach efforts must be included in the proposer's response package.

#### b. The Sherman Anti-Trust Act

A responder, by signing and making this response, does further declare, in determining the prices and/or amounts of the items, that bidder has not colluded with any other person, firm, corporation or association in arriving at said prices and/or amounts or in any way violated the terms, conditions and/or spirit of the provisions of 15 U.S.C. 1 through 7 (Sherman Anti-Trust Act).

### c. Title VI

It is the policy of the South Central TN Development District, as a grant recipient, to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, under any program or activity receiving financial assistance from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

### **Indemnification and Hold Harmless**

The Responder shall indemnify and hold harmless South Central Tennessee Development District and its Organization, their officers, agents and employees from:

- a) Any claims, damages, costs and attorney fees for injuries or damages arising, in part or in whole, from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Responder, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, in connection with the performance of the contract, and,
- b) Any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attorney fees arising from any failure of Responder, its officers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to, labor laws and minimum wage laws.
- c) SCTDD will not indemnify, defend or hold harmless in any fashion the Responder from any claims arising from any failure, regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that the Responder may provide.
- d) Responder shall pay SCTDD any expenses incurred as a result of Responder's failure to fulfill any obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Contract.

Responder agrees that it shall indemnify and hold harmless SCTDD and SCTDD's directors, officers, and employees from and against any loss, damages, or injuries SCTDD and SCTDD's directors, officer, or employees shall suffer or incur as a result of any suit, claim, or proceeding based on Responder's failure to meet conditions, specifications, or deadlines; or of circumstances beyond the control of SCTDD. Responder shall pay any damages, costs, expenses, fees (including attorneys' fees) incurred by SCTDD or SCTDD's directors, officers, or employees, provided that SCTDD gives Responder prompt notice of any such claim and SCTDD does not enter or propose to enter into any settlement of such suit, claim or proceeding without Responder's written consent

## **Attachment A**

## **Proposing Entity Form**

Legal Name of Agency	
Number of Years in Business	
Identifier	FEIN#
	UEI#
Type of Organization	
Address of Administrative Office	Address
	City/State/Zip
	Website URL
Address Local Office if different from	Address
Administrative Office	City/State/Zip
	Website URL
Principal of Agency	Name
(President/CEO/Executive Director)	Title
	E-mail Address
	Phone
	Name
Programmatic Contact Person	Title
	E-mail Address
	Phone
Funding Amount Requested	
Signatory Authority (may sign electronically if emailed for signatory authority account)	
account,	

### **Attachment B**

### **Conflict of Interest Form**

By submitting a proposal, the authorized signatory authority of the bidding entity certifies to his/her knowledge and belief that there is no conflict of interest (real or apparent) inherent in the bid or in delivering the scope of work if the SCTDD EPA Project is awarded. A conflict of interest would arise if any individual involved in the preparation of this proposal and delivery of services has a financial or other interest or would be likely to gain financially or personally from the award of a contract. The same would hold true for any member of the individual's family, partner, or an organization employing or about to employ any of the above as a direct result of the successful award of a contract under the RFP. SCTDD reserves the right to disqualify a bidding entity should a conflict of interest be discovered during the solicitation process.

Authorized Signature	Date
Name Printed	Title

Note: This form is a mandatory required document to be considered for the contract.

## Attachment C

## **EPA Solicitation Clauses**

Except as noted all clauses apply to every award and/or solicitation. Questions about the applicability of any of these clauses should be raised to the EPA contact identified in the solicitation.

### Contents

	Solicitation Clauseson III	
a.	Insular Areas / Omnibus Territories Act Cost Share Waiver (Where Applicable)	3
Section	on IV	3
a.	Confidential Business Information	3
b.	Pre-application/Application Assistance and Communications	
c.	Management Fees	
d.	Contracts and Subawards:	
e.	Duplicate Funding	
f.	System for Award Management (SAM) Unique Entity Identifier Requirements	6
g.	Restrictions on Use of Federal Funds	6
h.	Intergovernmental Review Act	7
i.	No Awards	7
j.	Statutory Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Equipme	nt
or	Services	7
Section	on V	8
a.	Reporting and Use of Information Concerning Recipient Integrity and Performance:	8
Section	on VI Clauses	8
a.	Human Subjects (if applicable):	8
b.	Animal Welfare (if applicable):	
c.	Data Access and Information Release:	
d.	Nonprofit Administrative Capability Clause (applicable to non-profit awards over	
\$2	00,000)	9
e.	Final Application Submission	
f.	Subaward and Executive Compensation Reporting	
g.	Unliquidated Obligations	
h.	Website References in Solicitations	10
i.	Unpaid Federal Tax Liabilities and Felony Convictions for Non-Profit and For-Profit	
Or	ganizations (if applicable):	10
j.	Unfair Competitive Advantage	
k.	Exchange Network	
I.	Debriefings	11
m.	Disputes	11

n.	Copyrights	. 11
	Competency of Organizations Generating Environmental Measurement Data (if	
app	olicable):	. 12
p.	Confidentiality Statements-Fraud, Waste or Abuse Reporting (if applicable):	. 12
q.	EPA Financial Assistance Conflict of Interest Policy:	. 12
r.	Mandatory Disclosures	. 13
s.	Reporting and Use of Information Concerning Recipient Integrity and Performance	13
t.	Life Sciences Dual Use Research of Concern	. 13
u.	Indirect Costs	13
٧.	Increasing Access to Results of EPA-Funded Extramural Scientific Research (applies to	
soli	citations for research awards)	. 14
w.	Terms and Conditions	16
х.	Build America, Buy America	. 16
у.	Quality Assurance – Quality Management Plans (QMP) and Quality Assurance Project	
Plai	ns (QAPP)	. 19
z.	Federal Civil Rights Responsibilities, Including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964	. 20
aa.	Required Training for New Applicants and Recipients	21

## Section III

a. Insular Areas / Omnibus Territories Act Cost Share Waiver (Where Applicable) For grant solicitations under programs that (1) the Insular Areas (the U.S. Virgin Islands, American Samoa, Guam, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands) are eligible entities for, and (2) include a mandatory matching or cost sharing requirement, cost sharing and matching requirements under \$200,000 for Insular Area applicants (the U.S. Virgin Islands, American Samoa, Guam and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands) are waived as a matter of law as authorized by the Omnibus Territories Act , 48 U.S.C. Section 1469a. Insular Area applicants with applications that will require a cost share of \$200,000 or more are advised to contact the point of contact listed in Section VII of the solicitation to determine if cost share requirements will be waived in whole or in part.

## Section IV

### a. Confidential Business Information

EPA recommends that you do not include confidential business information (CBI) in your application. However, if CBI is included, it will be treated in accordance with <u>40 CFR 2.203</u>. Applicants must clearly indicate which portion(s) of their application they are claiming as CBI. EPA will evaluate such claims in accordance with <u>40 CFR Part 2</u>. If no claim of confidentiality is made, EPA is not required to make the inquiry to the applicant otherwise required by <u>40 CFR 2.204(c)(2)</u> prior to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act prior to or after selections are made.

b. Pre-application/Application Assistance and Communications
In accordance with EPA's Assistance Agreement Competition Policy (EPA Order 5700.5A1), EPA staff will not meet with individual applicants to discuss draft applications, provide informal comments on draft applications, or provide advice to applicants on how to respond to ranking criteria. Applicants are responsible for the contents of their applications/applications. However, consistent with the provisions in the announcement, EPA will respond to questions from individual applicants regarding threshold eligibility criteria, administrative issues related to the submission of the application, and requests for clarification about any of the language or provisions in the announcement. Please note that applicants should raise any questions they may have about the solicitation language to the contact identified in Section VII as soon as possible so that any questions about the solicitation language may be resolved prior to submitting an application.

In addition, if necessary, EPA may clarify threshold eligibility issues with applicants prior to making an eligibility determination.

### c. Management Fees

When formulating budgets for applications, applicants must not include management fees or similar charges in excess of the direct costs and indirect costs at the rate approved by the applicants cognizant audit agency, or at the rate provided for by the terms of the agreement negotiated with EPA. The term management fees or similar charges refers to expenses added to the direct costs in order to accumulate and reserve funds for ongoing business expenses, unforeseen liabilities, or for other similar costs that are not allowable under EPA assistance agreements. Management fees or similar charges may not be used to improve or expand the project funded under this agreement, except to the extent authorized as a direct cost of carrying out the scope of work.

#### d. Contracts and Subawards:

a. Can funding be used for the applicant to make subawards, acquire contract services, or fund partnerships?

EPA awards funds to one eligible applicant as the recipient even if other eligible applicants are named as partners or co-applicants or members of a coalition or consortium. The recipient is accountable to EPA for the proper expenditure of funds.

Funding may be used to provide subawards of financial assistance, which includes using subawards to fund partnerships, provided the recipient complies with applicable requirements for subawards including those contained in <u>2 CFR Part 200</u> and <u>EPA's Subaward Policy</u>. EPA has also posted <u>Additional Resources</u> on Subawards for applicants to consult.

Applicants must compete contracts for services and products, including consultant contracts, and conduct cost and price analyses, to the extent required by the procurement provisions of the regulations at <u>2 CFR Part 200</u>. Applicants are not required to identify subrecipients and/or contractors (including consultants) in their application. However, if they do, the fact that an applicant selected for award has named a specific subrecipient, contractor, or consultant in the application EPA selects for funding does not relieve the applicant of its obligations to comply with subaward and/or competitive procurement requirements as appropriate. Please note that applicants may not award sole source contracts to consulting, engineering or other firms assisting applicants with the application solely based on the firm's role in preparing the application. For additional guidance applicants should review EPA's <u>Best Practice Guide for Procuring Services</u>, <u>Supplies</u>, and <u>Equipment Under EPA Assistance Agreements</u>.

Successful applicants cannot use subawards to avoid requirements in EPA grant regulations for competitive procurement by using these instruments to acquire commercial services or products from for-profit organizations to carry out its assistance agreement. The nature of the transaction between the recipient and the subrecipient must be consistent with the standards for distinguishing between vendor transactions and subrecipient assistance found at <u>2 CFR 200.331</u>, the definitions of Subaward and Subrecipient at 2 CFR 200.1,

and <u>Appendix A to EPA's Subaward Policy</u>. EPA will not be a party to these transactions. Applicants acquiring commercial goods or services must comply with the competitive procurement requirements in <u>2 CFR 200.319</u> and <u>2 CFR 200.320</u> and cannot use a subaward as the funding mechanism.

## b. How will an applicant's proposed subrecipients and contractors be considered during the evaluation process described in Section V of the announcement?

Section V of the announcement describes the evaluation criteria and evaluation process that will be used by EPA to make selections under this announcement. During this evaluation, except for those criteria that relate to the applicant's own qualifications, past performance, and reporting history, the review panel will consider, as appropriate and relevant, the qualifications, expertise, and experience of:

- (i) an applicant's named subrecipients identified in the application if the applicant demonstrates in the application that if it receives an award that the subaward will be properly awarded consistent with the applicable regulations in <u>2 CFR Part 200</u>. For example, applicants must not use subawards to obtain commercial services or products from for profit firms or individual consultants.
- (ii) an applicant's named contractor(s), including consultants, identified in the application if the applicant demonstrates in its application that the contractor(s) was selected in compliance with the competitive procurement requirements in <u>2 CFR 200.319</u> and <u>2 CFR 200.320</u>. For example, an applicant must demonstrate that it selected the contractor(s) competitively or that a proper non-competitive sole-source award consistent with the regulations will be made to the contractor(s), that efforts were made to provide small and disadvantaged businesses with opportunities to compete as provided in <u>40 CFR 33.301</u>, and that some form of cost or price analysis was conducted. EPA may not accept sole source justifications for contracts for services or products that are otherwise readily available in the commercial marketplace.

EPA will not consider the qualifications, experience, and expertise of named subrecipients and/or named contractor(s) during the application evaluation process unless the applicant complies with these requirements. For additional guidance applicants should review EPA's <a href="https://example.com/Procuring-Services">Practice Guide for Procuring Services</a>, Supplies, and Equipment Under EPA Assistance <a href="https://example.com/Agreements">Agreements</a>.

### e. Duplicate Funding

Generally, applicants are not prohibited from submitting the same or virtually the same competitive or non-competitive application(s) for funding to EPA and/or other federal agencies and entities. However, if an applicant does so, and the application (or one virtually the same) that was submitted under this solicitation is also selected for funding by EPA and/or other federal agencies and entities competitively or non-competitively, that may affect their ability to receive an award under this competition for that application. Applicants should also be aware that if they use a contractor to prepare their application or portions of their application under this solicitation that contractor may also be assisting other applicants with their applications

that could result in identical or virtually identical submissions to EPA. In such cases, the agency reserves the right to decide which, if any, of the applications to fund.

- f. System for Award Management (SAM) Unique Entity Identifier Requirements Unless exempt from these requirements under OMB guidance at <u>2 CFR Part 25</u> (e.g., individuals), applicants must:
  - 1. Be registered in SAM prior to submitting an application or plan under this announcement. SAM information can be found at <u>Sam.gov</u>
  - 2. Maintain an active SAM registration with current information including information on a recipient's immediate and highest level owner and subsidiaries, as well as on all predecessors that have been awarded a Federal contract or grant within the last three years, if applicable, at all times during which it has an active Federal award or an application or plan under consideration by a Federal awarding agency; and
  - 3. Provide its unique entity identifier in each application or plan it submits to the Federal awarding agency (e.g., provide its DUNS number in each application it submits to the Agency). *Unique entity identifier* means the identifier required for SAM registration to uniquely identify business entities. Applicants can receive a DUNS number, at no cost, by calling the dedicated toll-free DUNS Number request line at 1-866-705-5711, or visiting the D&B website.

EPA may not make an award to an applicant until the applicant has complied with all applicable unique entity identifier and SAM requirements. If an applicant fails to fully comply with these requirements by the time EPA is ready to make an award, EPA may determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive an award and use that determination as a basis to make an award to another applicant.

To learn more about SAM, go to <u>SAM.gov</u>.

### g. Restrictions on Use of Federal Funds

All costs incurred under this program must be allowable under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E. In accordance with applicable law, regulation, and policy, any recipient of funding must agree to comply with restrictions on using assistance funds for unauthorized lobbying, fund-raising, or political activities (i.e., lobbying members of Congress or lobbying for other federal grants, cooperative agreements, or contracts). See e.g. 2 CFR 200.450. Funds generally cannot be used to pay for travel by federal agency staff. Proposed project activities must also comply with all state and federal regulations applicable to the project area. The applicant must also review the solicitation for any other programmatic funding restrictions applicable to this program. If awarded funding, the recipient must refer to the terms and conditions of its award for other funding restrictions applicable to its award. It is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure compliance with these requirements. In addition, please see 2 CFR 200 for information on pre-

award costs.

### h. Intergovernmental Review Act

Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs, may be applicable to awards resulting from this announcement. EPA implemented the Executive Order in 40 CFR Part 29. EPA may require applicants selected for funding to provide a copy of their application to their State Point of Contact (SPOC) for review as provided at 40 CFR 29.7 and 40 CFR 29.8. The SPOC list can be found on the webpage below.

• Office of Federal Financial Management Resources and Other Information
EPA may require successful applicants from states that do not have a SPOC to provide a copy of their application for review to directly affected state, area-wide, regional and local government entities as provided at 40 CFR 29.7 and 40 CFR 29.8. These reviews are not required before submitting an application. Only applicants that EPA selects for funding under this announcement are subject to the Intergovernmental Review requirement.

### i. No Awards

The Agency reserves the right to make no awards under this competition.

j. Statutory Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Equipment or Services

Unless an exception or waiver applies, Section 889 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Public Law 115-232 (section 889), prohibits the use of Federal funds by recipients and subrecipients to procure (enter into, extend, or renew contracts) or obtain equipment, systems, or services that use "covered telecommunications equipment or services" as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. Section 889 also prohibits the use of Federal funds by recipients and subrecipients to enter into a contract with an entity that "uses any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services" as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. The Office of Management and Budget's implementing regulations at 2 CFR 200.216 provide additional information on the prohibitions in section 889. These regulations state, among other things, that "[A]s described in Public Law 115-232, section 889 covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities)." Other prohibitions may also apply. Certain prohibited equipment, systems, or services, including equipment, systems, or services produced or provided by entities identified in section 889, are recorded in the System for Award Management exclusion list.

## Section V

- a. Reporting and Use of Information Concerning Recipient Integrity and Performance: For any award under this solicitation where EPA anticipates that the total Federal share will be greater than the simplified acquisition threshold over the period of performance (see <u>2 CFR §200.1</u>-as of August 19, 2020 the threshold is \$250,000 but it is periodically adjusted), applicants are notified:
  - i. That EPA, prior to making a Federal award with a total amount of Federal share greater than the simplified acquisition threshold, is required to review and consider any information about the applicant that is in the designated integrity and performance system accessible through SAM (currently FAPIIS) (see 41 U.S.C. 2313); ii. That an applicant, at its option, may review information in the designated integrity and performance systems accessible through SAM and comment on any information about itself that a Federal awarding agency previously entered and is currently in the designated integrity and performance system accessible through SAM; iii. That EPA will consider any comments by the applicant, in addition to the other information in the designated integrity and performance system, in making a judgment about the applicant's integrity, business ethics, and record of performance under Federal awards when completing the review of risk posed by applicants as described in 2 CFR §200.206.

## Section VI Clauses

### a. Human Subjects (if applicable):

A grant applicant must agree to meet all EPA requirements for studies using human subjects prior to implementing any work with these subjects. These requirements are given in 40 CFR Part 26. Studies involving intentional exposure of human subjects who are children or pregnant or nursing women are prohibited by Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 26. For observational studies involving children or pregnant women and fetuses please refer to Subparts C & D of 40 CFR Part 26. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services regulations at 45 CFR Part 46.101(e) have long required "... compliance with pertinent Federal laws or regulations which provide additional protection for human subjects." EPA's regulation 40 CFR Part 26 is such a pertinent Federal regulation. Therefore, the applicant's Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval must state that the applicant's study meets the EPA's regulations at 40 CFR Part 26. No work involving human subjects, including recruiting, may be initiated before the EPA has received a copy of the applicant's IRB approval of the project and the EPA has also provided approval. Where human subjects are involved in the research, the recipient must provide evidence of subsequent IRB reviews, including amendments or minor changes of protocol, as part of progress reports.

Guidance and training for investigators conducting EPA-funded research involving human subjects may be obtained here:

<u>Basic Information about Human Subjects Research</u> <u>Electronic Code of Federal Regulations</u>

### b. Animal Welfare (if applicable):

A grant recipient must agree to comply with the Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544), as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131-2159. The recipient must also agree to abide by the **U.S. Government Principles for the Utilization and Care of Vertebrate Animals used in Testing, Research, and Training.** (50 Federal Register 20864-20865 (May 20, 1985))

\*This clause applies if a research facility (defined as any school (except elementary or secondary), institution, organization or person) receives funds under a grant from a federal agency for the purpose of carrying out research, tests, or experiments involving animals.

### c. Data Access and Information Release:

EPA has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data produced under the awards to be made under this solicitation and authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use such data for federal purposes under <u>2 CFR 200.315</u>. In addition, pursuant to <u>2 CFR 200.315(e)</u>, if EPA receives a Freedom of Information Act request for research data that (1) relates to published research findings produced under an EPA award and (2) was used by the federal government in developing an agency action that has the force and effect of law, then EPA shall request, and the award recipient shall provide, within a reasonable time, the research data so that it may be made available to the public through procedures established under the FOIA.

d. Nonprofit Administrative Capability Clause (applicable to non-profit awards over \$200,000)

Non-profit applicants that are recommended for funding under this announcement are subject to pre-award administrative capability reviews consistent with Section 8b, 8c, and 9d of <u>EPA Order 5700.8</u>: EPA's Policy on Assessing Capabilities of Non-Profit Applicants for Managing <u>Assistance Awards</u>. In addition, non-profit applicants selected for awards over \$200,000 may be required to fill out and submit to the grants management office <u>EPA Form 6600.09</u>, <u>United States Environmental Protection Agency Administrative Capability Questionnaire</u> with supporting documents as required in EPA Order 5700.8.

### e. Final Application Submission

Generally, following EPA's evaluation of applications, all applicants will be notified regarding their status. Final applications and forms will be requested, as necessary, from those eligible entities whose application has been successfully evaluated and preliminarily recommended for award. Those entities will be provided with instructions and a due date for submittal of the final application package.

### f. Subaward and Executive Compensation Reporting

Applicants must ensure that they have the necessary processes and systems in place to comply with the sub-award and executive total compensation reporting requirements established under OMB guidance at <u>2 CFR Part 170</u>, unless they qualify for an exception from the requirements, should they be selected for funding.

### g. Unliquidated Obligations

An applicant that receives an award under this announcement is expected to manage assistance agreement funds efficiently and effectively and make sufficient progress towards completing the project activities described in the work-plan in a timely manner. The assistance agreement will include terms/conditions implementing this requirement.

#### h. Website References in Solicitations

Any non-federal websites or website links included in this solicitation are provided for application preparation and/or informational purposes only. EPA does not endorse any of these entities or their services. In addition, EPA does not guarantee that any linked, external websites referenced in this solicitation comply with Section 508 (Accessibility Requirements) of the Rehabilitation Act.

i. Unpaid Federal Tax Liabilities and Felony Convictions for Non-Profit and For-Profit Organizations (if applicable):

Awards made under this announcement are subject to provisions contained in an appropriations act(s) that prohibits EPA from entering into a contract, memorandum of understanding, or cooperative agreement with, making a grant to, or providing a loan or loan guarantee to any for-profit or non-profit corporation: (1) subject to any unpaid federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; or (2) that was convicted of a felony criminal conviction under any federal law within 24 months preceding the award, unless EPA has considered suspension or debarment of the corporation, based on these tax liabilities or convictions, and determined that such action is not necessary to protect the government's interests. Based on application of these provisions, non-profit or for-profit corporations that are covered by these prohibitions may be ineligible to receive an award under this announcement. Questions about this provision should be raised to the point of contact identified in Section VII of the solicitation or the EPA Suspension and Debarment Program (<a href="https://www.epa.gov/grants/suspension-and-debarment-contacts">https://www.epa.gov/grants/suspension-and-debarment-contacts</a>).

### j. Unfair Competitive Advantage

EPA personnel will take appropriate actions in situations where it is determined that an applicant may have an unfair competitive advantage, or the appearance of such, in competing for awards under this announcement. Affected applicants will be provided an opportunity to respond before any final action is taken.

### k. Exchange Network

The Environmental Information Exchange Network (Exchange Network, Network or EN) is a partner-inspired, developed, implemented and governed information network. It facilitates environmental data sharing among EPA, states, tribes and territories. The EN uses a standards-based approach that allows partners to exchange data over the Internet regardless of the specific information technology used. This replaces the need to perform complex and expensive data transformations to move data between systems or to share data on paper, discs or other media or via email. Partners share electronic data more easily and at a lower cost, and environmental decision makers are able to use the data to make timely decisions. States, tribes and territories exchanging data with each other or with EPA, should make the Exchange Network and the agency's connection to it, the Central Data Exchange (CDX), the standard way they exchange data and should phase out any legacy methods they have been using. More information available on the Exchange Network

### I. Debriefings

Unsuccessful applicants interested in requesting a debriefing should refer to the procedures for debriefings in the <u>Dispute Resolution Procedures</u>, which can also be found at 70 FR (Federal Register) 3629, 3630 (January 26, 2005). Copies of these procedures may also be requested by contacting the person listed in Section VII of the announcement. Please note that the FR notice referenced above refers to regulations at 40 CFR Parts 30 and 31 that have been superseded by regulations in 2 CFR parts 200 and 1500. Notwithstanding this, the procedures for competition-related debriefings and disputes remains unchanged from the procedures described at 70 FR 3629, 3630, as indicated in <u>2 CFR Part 1500, Subpart E</u>.

### m. Disputes

Assistance agreement competition-related disputes will be resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution procedures published in 70 FR (Federal Register) 3629, 3630 (January 26, 2005) which can be found at <u>Grant Competition Dispute Resolution Procedures</u>. Copies of these procedures may also be requested by contacting the person listed in Section VII of the announcement. Note, the FR notice references regulations at 40 CFR Parts 30 and 31 that have been superseded by regulations in 2 CFR parts 200 and 1500. Notwithstanding the regulatory changes, the procedures for competition-related disputes remains unchanged from the procedures described at 70 FR 3629, 3630, as indicated in <u>2 CFR Part 1500, Subpart E</u>.

### n. Copyrights

In accordance with <u>2 CFR 200.315</u>, EPA reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for federal government purposes, copyrighted works developed under a grant, subaward or contract under a grant or subaward. Examples of federal purpose include but are not limited to: (1) Use by EPA and other federal employees for official government purposes; (2) Use by federal contractors performing specific tasks for the government; (3) Publication in EPA documents provided the document does not disclose trade secrets (e.g. software codes) and the work is properly attributed to the recipient through citation or otherwise; (4) Reproduction of

documents for inclusion in federal depositories; (5) Use by state, tribal and local governments that carry out delegated federal environmental programs as co-regulators or act as official partners with EPA to carry out a national environmental program within their jurisdiction; and (6) Limited use by other recipients to carry out federal grants provided the use is consistent with the terms of EPA's authorization to the recipient to use the copyrighted material.

o. Competency of Organizations Generating Environmental Measurement Data (if applicable):

In accordance with EPA's Policy to Assure the Competency of Organizations Generating Environmental Measurement Data under Agency-Funded Assistance Agreements, successful applicants/recipients for awards under this competition that are expected to exceed \$200,000 in federal funding that involve the generation or use of environmental data must demonstrate competency to perform such work either prior to award, or if that is not practicable or will delay the award, prior to beginning any work involving the generation or use of environmental data under the agreement. Applicants that demonstrate competency prior to award must maintain competency, as appropriate, during the award period. Applicants that do not address competency prior to award must demonstrate competency prior to beginning any work involving the generation or use of environmental data under the agreement and maintain competency, as appropriate, during the award period. A copy of the policy is available online at Federal Register Volume 78, Number 82 or a copy may also be requested by contacting the person listed in Section VII of the announcement.

- p. Confidentiality Statements-Fraud, Waste or Abuse Reporting (if applicable): Awards made under this announcement are subject to a provision contained in an appropriations act that prohibits EPA from entering into a contract, grant or cooperative agreement with an entity that requires employees or contractors of such entity seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign internal confidentiality agreements or statements prohibiting or otherwise restricting such employees or contractors from lawfully reporting such waste, fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.
- q. EPA Financial Assistance Conflict of Interest Policy:

The Applicant's Conflict of Interest (COI) Point of Contact as defined in EPA's Conflict of Interest Policy must notify the EPA contact identified in Section VII of this solicitation of any actual or potential conflict of interest that they are aware of that may provide the Applicant with an unfair competitive advantage in competing for EPA financial assistance awards within 10 calendar days of becoming aware of the conflict of interest. Examples of an unfair competitive advantage include but are not limited to situations in which an EPA employee reviewed and commented on or drafted all or part of an applicant's application. Note that EPA does not generally consider receiving information from an EPA employee limited to whether the applicant or the applicant's proposed project is eligible to compete for funding to confer an unfair competitive advantage. In addition, assistance agreements made under this solicitation will include a term and condition notifying recipients of their COI disclosure obligations and

responsibilities under the award including the need to have systems in place to address, resolve and disclose COIs to EPA.

### r. Mandatory Disclosures

As required by <u>2 CFR § 200.113</u>, non-federal entities or applicants for a Federal award must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal award. Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in <u>2 CFR § 200.339</u> including suspension and debarment.

s. Reporting and Use of Information Concerning Recipient Integrity and Performance If the Federal share of any Federal award may include more than \$500,000 over the period of performance, applicants are advised about the post-award reporting requirements reflected in the <u>Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters contained in Appendix XII</u> to 2 CFR Part 200.

#### t. Life Sciences Dual Use Research of Concern

Projects awarded under this solicitation that involve life sciences research as defined below are subject to the requirements of the *United States Government Policy for Institutional Oversight of Life Sciences Dual Use Research of Concern* (iDURC Policy), provided that the recipient is an institution within the United States that receives funding through this agreement, or from any other source, to conduct or sponsor research involving any of the agents or toxins identified in Section 6.2.1 of the iDURC Policy. If the recipient is an institution outside the United States that receives funding through this agreement to conduct or sponsor research involving any of those same agents or toxins, it will also be subject to requirements of the iDURC Policy. The <u>iDURC Policy</u> is available for reference.

Life Sciences Research, for purposes of this clause, and based on the definition of research in 40 CFR §26.102(d), is a systematic investigation designed to develop or contribute to generalizable knowledge involving living organisms (e.g., microbes, human beings, animals, and plants) and their products. EPA does not consider the following activities to be research: routine product testing, quality control, mapping, collection of general-purpose statistics, routine monitoring and evaluation of an operational program, observational studies, and the training of scientific and technical personnel. [Note: This is consistent with Office of Management and Budget Circular A-11.]

### u. Indirect Costs

Indirect costs (IDCs) may be budgeted and charged by recipients of Federal assistance agreements in accordance with <u>2 CFR Part 200</u>. EPA's <u>Indirect Cost Policy for Recipients of EPA Assistance Agreements</u> (IDC Policy) implements the Federal regulations, and the following applies to all EPA assistance agreements, unless there are <u>statutory or regulatory limits on IDCs</u>.

In order for an assistance agreement recipient to use EPA funding for indirect costs, the IDC category of the recipient's assistance agreement award budget must include an amount for IDCs and at least one of the following must apply:

- With the exception of "exempt" agencies and Institutions of Higher Education as noted below, all recipients must have one of the following current (not expired) IDC rates, including IDC rates that have been extended by the cognizant agency:
  - Provisional;
  - Final;
  - Fixed rate with carry-forward;
  - Predetermined;
  - Grants awarded before October 1, 2024 10% de minimis rate of modified total direct costs authorized by 2 CFR 200.414(f)
  - → Grants awarded on or after October 1, 2024 up to 15% de minimis rate of modified total direct costs authorized by 2 CFR 200.414(f)
- "Exempt" state or local governmental departments or agencies are agencies that
  receive up to and including \$35,000,000 in Federal funding per the department or
  agency's fiscal year, and must have an IDC rate application developed in accordance
  with <u>2 CFR 200 Appendix VII</u>, with documentation maintained and available for audit.
- Institutions of Higher Education must use the IDC rate in place at the time of award for the life of the assistance agreement (unless the rate was provisional at time of award, in which case the rate will change once it becomes final). As provided by 2
   CFR Part 200, Appendix III(C)(7), the term "life of the assistance agreement", means each competitive segment of the project. Additional information is available in the regulation.

IDCs incurred during any period of the assistance agreement that are not covered by the provisions above are not allowable costs, and must not be drawn down by the recipient. Recipients may budget for IDCs pending approval of their IDC rate by the cognizant Federal agency. However, recipients may not draw down IDCs until their rate is approved.

The IDC Policy does not govern indirect rates for subrecipients or recipient procurement contractors under EPA assistance agreements. Pass-through entities are required to comply with 2 CFR 200.331(a)(4) when establishing indirect cost rates for subawards.

See the <u>Indirect Cost Guidance for Recipients of EPA Assistance Agreements</u> for additional information.

v. Increasing Access to Results of EPA-Funded Extramural Scientific Research (applies to solicitations for research awards)

Research is defined in the <u>Policy for Increasing Access to Results of EPA-Funded Extramural Scientific Research</u> as the systematic inquiry directed toward fuller scientific knowledge or understanding of the subject studied. This Policy requires that the results of EPA-funded

extramural scientific research are accessible to the public to the greatest extent feasible consistent with applicable law; policies and Orders; the Agency's mission; resource constraints; and U.S. national, homeland and economic security.

(a) When a journal does not submit a journal publication or author manuscript associated with the journal publication directly to the National Institute of Health's <u>PubMed Central (PMC)</u>, recipients are responsible for making the author manuscript accessible to the public at no charge via PMC. The recipient must submit the author manuscript to PMC no later than the end of the embargo period of twelve months after journal publication. PMC then posts the manuscript on its site at the end of the embargo period, so it is accessible to the public.

Recipients are responsible for ensuring that either the journal publication or the author manuscript associated with the journal publication is deposited into PMC, so that the public may read, download and analyze the research results in digital form. Instructions for depositing author manuscripts associated with journal publications in PMC will be included in the award's terms and conditions.

- (b) Scientific research data underlying a journal publication are to be posted to a publicly accessible data repository by the recipient within 30 days of the date the journal publication or associated author manuscript becomes accessible to the public, whether made accessible by the journal at the time of publication or by PMC following the embargo period, unless (a) the dataset has already been made accessible to the public via public release or another sharing mechanism; or (b) the research data cannot be released due to one or more constraints, such as requirements to protect personal privacy, proprietary interest, property rights, national security or dual use research of concern. Datasets must contain enough information to allow independent use (understanding, validation and analysis) of the data.
- (c) Publication metadata records shall be provided via the National Institute of Health's Manuscript Submission (NIHMS) when the journal publication or associated author manuscript is submitted to NIHMS. The metadata record for the dataset underlying the journal publication will be made accessible by the recipient through EPA's dataset metadata repository within 30 days of the date the journal publication or associated author manuscript becomes accessible to the public, whether made accessible by the journal at the time of publication or by PMC following the embargo period. Guidance for providing dataset metadata to EPA's dataset metadata repository will be included in the award's terms and conditions.

#### w. Terms and Conditions

The applicable terms and conditions that apply to awards resulting from this solicitation will be included in the Award document. A general listing of terms and conditions can be found at the <u>Grant Terms and Conditions</u> page.

### x. Build America, Buy America

Applicants should be aware that if their proposals include using Federal funds for an infrastructure project that includes the purchase of articles, materials, and supplies in the United States for identified EPA financial assistance funding programs, they must comply with the following Term and Condition if they are selected for award. Applicants should direct questions about this requirement to the program Point of Contact listed in Section VII for the Notice of Funding Opportunity (FON).

## Build America, Buy America – Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction Materials

**Buy America Preference.** Recipients of an award of Federal financial assistance from a program for infrastructure are hereby notified that none of the funds provided under this award may be used for an infrastructure project unless:

- (1) All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States—this means all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States;
- (2) All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States— this means the manufactured product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard that meets or exceeds this standard has been established under applicable law or regulation for determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured product; and
- (3) All construction materials are manufactured in the United States—this means that all manufacturing processes for the construction material occurred in the United States. The construction material standards are listed below.

*Incorporation into an infrastructure project.* The Buy America Preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as temporary scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America Preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment,

that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project.

Categorization of articles, materials, and supplies. An article, material, or supply should only be classified into one of the following categories: (i) Iron or steel products; (ii) Manufactured products; (iii) Construction materials; or (iv) Section 70917(c) materials. An article, material, or supply should not be considered to fall into multiple categories. In some cases, an article, material, or supply may not fall under any of the categories listed in this paragraph. The classification of an article, material, or supply as falling into one of the categories listed in this paragraph must be made based on its status at the time it is brought to the work site for incorporation into an infrastructure project. In general, the work site is the location of the infrastructure project at which the iron, steel, manufactured products, and construction materials will be incorporated.

**Application of the Buy America Preference by category.** An article, material, or supply incorporated into an infrastructure project must meet the Buy America Preference for only the single category in which it is classified.

**Determining the cost of components for manufactured products**. In determining whether the cost of components for manufactured products is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components, use the following instructions:

- (a) For components purchased by the manufacturer, the acquisition cost, including transportation costs to the place of incorporation into the manufactured product (whether or not such costs are paid to a domestic firm), and any applicable duty (whether or not a duty-free entry certificate is issued); or
- **(b)** For components manufactured by the manufacturer, all costs associated with the manufacture of the component, including transportation costs as described in paragraph (a), plus allocable overhead costs, but excluding profit. Cost of components does not include any costs associated with the manufacture of the manufactured product.

**Construction material standards.** The Buy America Preference applies to the following construction materials incorporated into infrastructure projects. Each construction material is followed by a standard for the material to be considered "produced in the United States." Except as specifically provided, only a single standard should be applied to a single construction material.

- (1) Non-ferrous metals. All manufacturing processes, from initial smelting or melting through final shaping, coating, and assembly, occurred in the United States.
- (2) Plastic and polymer-based products. All manufacturing processes, from initial combination of constituent plastic or polymer-based inputs, or, where applicable,

constituent composite materials, until the item is in its final form, occurred in the United States.

- **(3)** Glass. All manufacturing processes, from initial batching and melting of raw materials through annealing, cooling, and cutting, occurred in the United States.
- **(4)** Fiber optic cable (including drop cable). All manufacturing processes, from the initial ribboning (if applicable), through buffering, fiber stranding and jacketing, occurred in the United States. All manufacturing processes also include the standards for glass and optical fiber, but not for non-ferrous metals, plastic and polymer-based products, or any others.
- **(5)** Optical fiber. All manufacturing processes, from the initial preform fabrication stage through the completion of the draw, occurred in the United States.
- **(6)** Lumber. All manufacturing processes, from initial debarking through treatment and planing, occurred in the United States.
- (7) Drywall. All manufacturing processes, from initial blending of mined or synthetic gypsum plaster and additives through cutting and drying of sandwiched panels, occurred in the United States.
- **(8)** Engineered wood. All manufacturing processes from the initial combination of constituent materials until the wood product is in its final form, occurred in the United States.

*Waivers.* When supported by rationale provided in IIJA §70914, the recipient may submit a waiver request in writing to EPA. Recipients should request guidance on the submission instructions of an EPA waiver request from the EPA Project Officer for this agreement. A list of approved EPA waivers (general applicability and project specific) is available on the EPA Build America, Buy America website.

EPA may waive the application of the Buy America Preference when it has determined that one of the following exceptions applies:

- (1) applying the Buy America Preference would be inconsistent with the public interest;
- (2) the types of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities or of a satisfactory quality; or
- (3) the inclusion of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent.

For questions regarding the Build America, Buy America Act requirements for this assistance agreement or to determine if there is an approved waiver in place, please contact the EPA Project Officer for this agreement.

**Definitions.** For legal definitions and sourcing requirements, the recipient must consult the <u>EPA Build America</u>, <u>Buy America website</u>, <u>2 CFR Part 184</u>, and the <u>Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Memorandum M-24-02 Implementation Guidance on Application of Buy America Preference in Federal Financial Assistance Programs for Infrastructure.</u>

y. Quality Assurance – Quality Management Plans (QMP) and Quality Assurance Project Plans (QAPP)

Quality assurance documentation is required for awards that involve environmental information operations as specified in 2 CFR 1500.12 Quality Assurance, <u>EPA's Quality Policy</u>, and <u>EPA's Quality Procedure</u>. If selected for an award, EPA will work with the applicant to determine if a QMP and/or QAPP is required for the project. Applicants will develop the required QA document(s) and submit for EPA's approval. Selected applicants cannot begin environmental information operations until EPA approves the QMP and/or QAPP.

**Environmental Information Operations:** A collective term that encompasses the collection, production, evaluation, or use of environmental information and the design, construction, operation, or application of environmental technology. Environmental information includes data and information that describe environmental processes or conditions. Examples include but are not limited to: direct measurements of environmental parameters or processes, analytical testing results of environmental conditions (e.g., geophysical, or hydrological conditions), information on physical parameters or processes collected using environmental technologies, calculations or analyses of environmental information, information provided by models, information compiled or obtained from databases, software applications, decision support tools, websites, existing literature, and other sources, and development of environmental software, tools, models, methods, and applications.

**Quality Assurance Project Plans (QAPP):** If the award involves environmental information operations, the recipient is required to develop a QAPP(s). A QAPP describes how environmental information operations are planned, implemented, documented, and assessed during the life cycle of a project. Requirements for QAPPs are found in the most recent version of EPA's <u>Quality Assurance Project Plan Standard</u>.

**Quality Management Plan (QMP):** In addition to a QAPP(s), the recipient may also need to develop a QMP. The QMP describes an organization's Quality Program. Requirements for QMPs are found in the most recent version of EPA's <u>Quality Management Standard</u>. The QMP must also document all technical activities to be performed under the Quality Program and how the program will integrate QA, quality control, and QAPPs into all its environmental information operations.

z. Federal Civil Rights Responsibilities, Including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 In 1994, Executive Order 12898 was issued to direct Federal agencies to incorporate achieving environmental justice into their mission. The Presidential Memorandum accompanying that Executive Order required in part, that consistent with Title VI, each Federal agency "...ensure that all programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance that affect human health or the environment do not directly, or through contractual or other arrangements, use criteria, methods, or practices that discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin." See Presidential Memorandum at <a href="https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2015-02/documents/clinton-memo-12898.pdf">https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2015-02/documents/clinton-memo-12898.pdf</a>.

EPA enforces federal civil rights laws that together prohibit discrimination on the bases of race, color, national origin (including limited-English proficiency), disability, sex, and age, respectively Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 (FWPCA) and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Age Discrimination Act). All applicants for and recipients of EPA financial assistance have an affirmative obligation to comply with these laws, as do any subrecipients of the primary recipient, and any successor, assignee, or transferee of a recipient, but excluding the ultimate beneficiary of the assistance. *See* federal civil rights laws and EPA's regulation at <a href="https://www.epa.gov/external-civil-rights/federal-civil-rights-laws-including-title-vi-and-epas-non-discrimination">https://www.epa.gov/external-civil-rights/federal-civil-rights-laws-including-title-vi-and-epas-non-discrimination</a>.

EPA's nondiscrimination regulation at 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7 also contain longstanding procedural requirements applicable to applicants for and recipients (including sub-recipients) of EPA financial assistance. These requirements include having a notice of nondiscrimination, nondiscrimination coordinator, grievance procedures, a process for collecting and maintaining nondiscrimination compliance information, and pursuant to Title VI and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, developing policies and procedures for ensuring meaningful access to programs and activities for individuals with limited-English proficiency and individuals with disabilities. In addition, recipients' public participation processes must also be implemented consistent with the federal civil rights laws.

EPA furthers recipients' compliance with these obligations through pre-award reviews, technical assistance and training, additional clarifying guidance and enhanced civil rights enforcement. Accordingly, EPA will carefully evaluate the grants awarded under this Notice of Funding Opportunity to ensure all recipients are in compliance with federal civil rights obligations. See website for Preaward information, <a href="https://www.epa.gov/grants/tips-completing-epa-form-4700-4">https://www.epa.gov/grants/tips-completing-epa-form-4700-4</a>.

For more information about the federal civil rights laws enforced by EPA, including Title VI, please visit: <a href="https://www.epa.gov/external-civil-rights/federal-civil-rights-laws-including-title-vi-and-epas-non-discrimination">https://www.epa.gov/external-civil-rights/federal-civil-rights-laws-including-title-vi-and-epas-non-discrimination</a>.

aa. Required Training for New Applicants and Recipients
EPA is now requiring all new assistance agreement applicants to complete two mandatory
trainings before receiving EPA grant funds. Those recipients who are new to EPA grants and/or
cooperative agreements will be required to complete the EPA Grants Management Training for
Applicants and Recipients and the training on How to Develop a Budget. EPA defines new
applicants as an organization never receiving an EPA grant before, or if the organization last
received an EPA grant prior to federal Fiscal Year (FY) 2015 (i.e. – prior to October 1, 2014).
Organizations can check USA Spending and determine if they are a new applicant/recipient for
this requirement by using these instructions. Only one recipient staff person needs to complete
the training; EPA recommends it is an individual listed in the grant applicant/recipient's EPA Key
Contacts Form 5700-54 (submitted with the application). For additional information, please

refer to Recipient/Applicant Information Notice (RAIN)-2024-G01.